
17 January 2020

HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE
will meet on

Monday, 27 January 2020
beginning at

7:00 pm
in the

Hedge End 2000 Centre, St John's Road, Hedge End, SO30 4AF

TO: Councillor Cynthia Garton (Chair)
Councillor Janice Asman (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Margaret Allingham Councillor Ian Corben
Councillor Richard Gomer Councillor Keith House
Councillor Lucy Jurd Councillor Rupert Kyrle
Councillor Derek Pretty Councillor Bruce Tennent
Councillor Adrian Trace Councillor Tim Bearder

Staff Contacts: Laura Johnston, Senior Democratic Services Officer tel: 023 8068 
8041 Email: laura.johnston@eastleigh.gov.uk. Please email 
Democratic.Services@eastleigh.gov.uk to register to speak before 
the meeting.

Julia Birt, Local Area Manager Tel: 023 8068 8437; Email: 
julia.birt@eastleigh.gov.uk

GAETANA WISEMAN
Head of Performance and Governance

_____________________________________________________________________

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the Council's website - 
http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings

as well as in other formats, including Braille, audio, large print and other 
languages, upon request.

Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the start of the 
meeting, and on individual agenda items at the time the item is discussed.  To 

register please contact the Democratic Services Officer above.
Please be aware that Eastleigh Borough Council permits filming, sound recording 

and photography at meetings open to the public, and Councillors will be using 
tablet devices to access committee papers.

Eastleigh House
Upper Market Street
Eastleigh SO50 9YN

1

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings
http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings


AGENDA

1. Public Participation    

2. Minutes    (Pages 5 - 10) 

To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 30 September 2019.

3. Apologies    

4. Declarations of Interest     

Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes.

5. Chair's Report    (Verbal Report)

6. Local Area Manager's Report    (Verbal Report)

7. Ageas Bowl Review 2019    (Pages 11 - 16)

8. Community Grants 2019/2020    (Pages 17 - 26)

9. Financial Management    (Pages 27 - 32)

10. Hedge End, West End and Botley Local Area Action Plan 2020/21    (Pages 33 - 
40)

11. Presentation on Planning Guidelines    (Verbal Report) 

A member of the Housing and Development team will give a short presentation on 
guidelines that have to be considered when determining planning applications; in 
particular the issues that can, and cannot, be taken into account.  

12. Planning Application - Unit 3, Lankester House, 1 Freegrounds Road, Hedge End, 
Southampton, SO30 0HG - X/19/86760    (Pages 41 - 48) 

Variation of condition 3 of prior notification J/17/80081 to extend opening hours. 
X/19/86760.

13. Planning Appeals     

The Head of Legal Services to report: -

(a) that the following appeals have been lodged:-

Venmarden, Pardoe Close, Hedge End. SO30 0NE

Appeal against the Council's refusal of planning permission for a single 
storey rear extension and pitched roof to incorporate existing front and rear 
dormers into main roof space (H/19/85225). 

Land at Peewit Hill, Bursledon, Southampton. SO31 8BL

2



Appeal against the Council's refusal of planning permission for the retention 
of access gates (retrospective) (F/18/84421). 

24 Bursledon Road, Hedge End. SO30 0BW

Appeal against the Council's refusal of planning permission for the raising of 
roof to provide second floor living accommodation (. 

(b) that the following appeals have been dismissed: -

The Brambles, Stubbs Drove, Hedge End, SO30 0FU

Appeal against the Council’s refusal to grant planning permission for the 
conversion of a double garage to an annexe with side extension 
(H/18/83824).

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
Monday, 2 March 2020 at 7:00 pm

in the Hedge End 2000 Centre, St John's 
Road, Hedge End, SO30 4AF

Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news -

Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email 

updates with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, 
Transport plus lots more. www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews

3

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews


This page is intentionally left blank



1

HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE

Monday, 30 September 2019  (7:00 pm – 7:19 pm)

PRESENT:

Councillor Garton (Chair); Councillors Asman, Allingham, Corben, Gomer, 
Jurd, Kyrle, Pretty, Tennent and Trace

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors House and Bearder

________________________________________

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY)

15. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

There was no public participation on this occasion.

16. MINUTES

The Chair noted that Cllr Bearder’s attendance at the meeting on 17 June 
2019 had been omitted from the record and subject to this amendment, 

RESOLVED -

That, subject to the inclusion of the amendment, the Minutes of the 
meeting(s) held on 17 June 2019 be confirmed and signed by the 
Chair as a correct record.

17. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest by Councillors on this occasion.

18. CHAIR'S REPORT

Woodhouse Lane

The Chair was pleased to confirm that agreement had been reached with 
Hampshire County Council concerning the planning obligations for the 
development at Woodhouse Lane. This would enable work to commence 
on site for the delivery of Deer Park School which was currently forecasted 
to be September 2021.

Discussions with Wildern Academy Trust and the County Council would be 
arranged to complete a community use agreement and further planning 
applications to enhance the outdoor sports provision.
 
Former Budgens site, Hedge End

5

Agenda Item 2



2

Demolition of the former Budgens building is planned for January 2020. 
The car park will have to be closed at this time because of health and 
safety issues. However the contractor has been advised that this closure 
period must be as short as practically possible.

The alternative Park and Stride sites at Turnpike Way and B&Q will be 
promoted to Wildern School and Shamblehurst School whilst the car park 
is closed.

Local councillors were very keen to keep the car park open during this 
year’s festive period and have also decided that the trial opening times will 
continue for the remainder of 2019. 

Public Art in West End

The official opening of the “Knot” sculpture on the old Moorgreen Hospital 
site took place on 24 July. The Chair thanked West End Parish Council for 
the excellent hospitality provided by members of the Hatch Café.

The Heritage Marker project was progressing as the design has been 
approved. Agreement on the locations of the three markers is now being 
sought.

Boorley Park

The new community centre and sports pavilion have been built to a high 
standard and it was hoped that practical completion will be achieved in the 
next month. 

After this has been secured, the buildings will be fitted out. The link road 
from Maddoxford Lane needs to be opened and safe access must be in 
place before these buildings can be used by the public.

Ageas Bowl Liaison Panel

During the Cricket World Cup, there were an unprecedented number of 
complaints about parking, mainly in West End. A review of the cricket 
season will be completed for this Committee and the Ageas Bowl Liaison 
Panel meeting. 

The Liaison Panel meeting will be held on Thursday 14 November from 
7.15pm at the Ageas Bowl. 

Local residents are invited to attend and to participate in the meeting.  

19. LOCAL AREA MANAGER'S REPORT

Resolved – the Committee noted the Local Area Manager’s 
report as detailed below:

6



3

Hatch Farm

A site meeting between the Borough Council and West End Parish Council 
had been arranged for mid - October. The community provision will be 
discussed including the play area, skate park and open space proposals. 

Barnsland will also be included given its proximity to the site. 

It is then envisaged that a working group will be established to progress 
these projects. 

Wildern Swimming Pool

The Council’s Project Manager had been working with the contractor to 
agree a final price for the pool roof project. A financial report had been 
written for this Committee and if approved, work is expected to commence 
in November 2019 with a likely completion in June 2020. 

The Wildern Management Committee had also approved expenditure of 
£45,000 for the upgrade of the pool changing rooms.  

Hedge End green routes 

An artist had been appointed to deliver a public art wayfinding scheme 
which would focus on linking existing routes and destinations. 

This pilot project would be launched initially in Hedge End and then rolled 
out to surrounding areas to promote our green and healthy borough to 
residents and visitors alike. 

Speed limit reminders

The Council had acquired a speed limit reminder device which had new 
graphics and displays the speed of the vehicle. This would be trialled in 
the forthcoming weeks across the Borough. 

The first site would be in Kings Copse Avenue following a spate of 
accidents in the last three months. 

It was hoped this device could be located in other hotspots within the local 
area and Councillors had already identified further locations.

Ratcliffe Road, Hedge End

7



4

Residents had approached Ward Councillors to help resolve the parking 
issues in Ratcliffe Road. This was not a Committee obligation however 
funding was approved and the Council’s Construction and Maintenance 
Team has completed the groundworks. 

Tree planting would commence shortly. 

Residents had been in contact to thank the Committee. 

Wildflower areas

Councillors had considered sites for the planting of wildflowers in the local 
area. These could be verges, roundabouts, car parks, open spaces and 
country parks.

This project would provide an improved environment and would also 
sustain pollinating insects such as bees and associated wildlife.   

20. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

Resolved – The Committee approved: 

(1) the new bridleway policy and associated charges;

(2) the allocation of the developer’s contribution of £70,320 for the 
community facilities at Boorley Park;

(3) the allocation of the developers’ contributions of £35,000 for 
the Wildern Swimming Pool Roof project; and

(4) the allocation of the developer’s contribution of £12,000 for the 
upgrade of the porch and roof at the Fire Station, West End.

21. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT PROGRAMME (CIP)

Resolved – the Committee considered and approved the Community 
Investment Programme Priorities for 2019 – 2024.

22. YOUTH SERVICES

The Chair acknowledged the contributions of Councillors Gomer, Jurd and 
Trace in bringing together the recommendations of the Review.

Resolved – the Committee approved the reallocation of the funding 
for the HEWEB Youth Leader position in line with the 
recommendations from the Youth Services Review 2019.

8



5

(Note: Councillors endorsed the Report’s recommendations and in 
particular, Councillor Kyrle expressed the hope that its implementation 
would be shaped and influenced by the Youth Community of HEWEB.  On 
behalf of Hedge End Town Council, Councillor Pretty indicated that with 
the appointment of a new Youth Leader, the Council’s aspiration was to 
continue and enhance the project work with local young people.  He 
anticipated that the Town Council might seek to apply for grants to support 
that work in collaboration with this Committee.)

23. PLANNING APPEALS

The Legal Services Manager reported that the following appeals had been 
dismissed:

Appeal against the decision of Eastleigh Borough Council to refuse 
to grant planning permission for the development of existing 
bungalow and replacement with a new chalet bungalow at 37 
Corona, Upper Northam Road, Hedge End, SO30 4EA.  (Ref: 
F/18/84257) 

This was a delegated decision.

Appeal against the decision of Eastleigh Borough Council to refuse 
to grant planning permission for the development proposed of the 
erection of a detached house at 1 Marls Road, Botley, SO30 2EY.  
(Ref: F/18/84230) 

This was a delegated decision.

Appeal against the decision of Eastleigh Borough Council to refuse 
to grant consent to undertake work to a tree protected by a Tree 
Preservation Order at Upcross, West End Road, West End, SO30 
3BJ.
(APP/TPO/W1715/6737). 

This was a delegated decision.

Appeal against the decision of Eastleigh Borough Council to refuse 
to grant planning permission for the development proposed of the 
erection of a no 3 bedroomed detached house, associated car 
parking and bin and bike storage at 17 Sherborne Way, Hedge End, 
SO30 0GY.  (Ref: F/18/84599).

This was a delegated decision.

Appeal against the non-determination of the application by 
Eastleigh Borough Council to grant permission for the demolition of 
the existing stable block and construction of 2 no. dwellings with 
associated garaging and landscaping at Moorgreen Farm, Burnetts 
Lane, West End, Southampton, SO30 2HH.  (Ref F/18/84398). 

9



6

This was a delegated decision.

The Legal Services Manager reported that the following appeals had been 
allowed: 

embankment; demolition of existing buildings and the creation of a 
new detached 2-storey building comprising offices and storage 
areas, erection of a detached workshop and the change of use to 
display and caravan sales with associated office and workshop at 
Thorneydown Farm, Moorhill Road, Southampton, SO30 3AY.  
(Ref: F/17/81667), subject to conditions.

Planning permission is granted for demolition of detached garage, 
erection of two storey rear and side extension, single storey rear 
extension and an attached garage to the south east elevation at 1 
Marls Road, Botley, Southampton, Hampshire, SO30 2EY. (Ref: 
H/19/851188). 

The Legal Services Manager reported that the following appeal had been 
lodged concerning planning enforcement: 

the alleged breach of development at land to the rear of Seddul 
Bahr, Allington Lane, Eastleigh, SO30 3HP, being the change of 
agricultural use of the land by erecting a building for storage and 
distribution. (Ref: EA/19/86426).

RESOLVED - That the report be noted.

M6405

1. FIELD_TITLEFIELD_TITLE

10



HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 

Monday, 27 January 2020 

AGEAS BOWL REVIEW FOR 2019

Report of the Assistant Local Area Manager in consultation with 
the Traffic Management Specialist, Environmental Health Officer 

and Customer Services Manager. 

Recommendation

It is recommended that the Hedge End, West End and Botley Local Area Committee
consider the review of complaints, comments and recommendations for the Ageas
Bowl during the 2019 season.

Summary

This report reviews complaints and comments which have been received by departments 
within Eastleigh Borough Council for the 2019 season.  The report draws comparison with 
the previous nine years. 

The majority of this report was presented at the Ageas Bowl Liaison Panel on Thursday 14
November 2019 and there is also an update on community uses for councillors to note.

Statutory Powers

Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 i.e. the Local Authority's general power of competence, 
including power to act for the benefit of its area or persons resident or present in its area.

Strategic Implications

The performance of the Ageas Bowl relates to the Enabling Healthier
Lifestyles and Wellbeing for all sections of the population. The community
outreach programme also helps with Tackling Deprivation as many of the
children would not otherwise experience cricket coaching or spectating. 
 Choi Kwang Do’s scholarship is also beneficial in this respect.

The Ageas Bowl offers employment for many local people ranging from
stewarding to catering, sales and marketing, coaching, maintenance and
the many professions required by a hotel. Secondary spend in the local
community on match and event days is significant and supports jobs in the
wider economy.

11

Agenda Item 7



Eastleigh Borough Council

The Ageas Bowl also contributes towards the aim of being a Green Borough and the
provision of an Excellent Environment for All is important for everyone who visits and 
works within the site and the surrounds. The Ageas Bowl works closely with the 
Council’s Direct Services to achieve this and the minimising of waste.

This report relates specifically to the Council’s community leadership role,
protecting the amenity and wellbeing of residents and supporting a positive
and constructive relationship between the Ageas Bowl and the local community.

Introduction

This report provides a summary of complaints and comments received by Borough 
Council staff  in respect of cricket matches and large-scale events held at the Ageas 
Bowl during the 2019 season. It provides an overview of concerns which have been 
acknowledged by the management team at the Ageas Bowl, who are now working in 
partnership with the Council to seek to address these issues. 

This season the Ageas Bowl hosted the ICC World Cup with five matches. A one day 
International was held in May and the T20 limited overs matches were played in July 
and August.

Complaints and comments received during the 2019 season are summarised below. 
The Council has received an unprecedented amount this year due to the ICC World 
Cup which equates to an 88% increase from last year.  To enable comparison, a 
summary of statistics for the previous 9 seasons are included in the following table:  

COMPLAINTS/
COMMENTS

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Parking/
Temporary Cones

43 5 2 2 9 4 13 5 17 17

Bus shuttles/traffic 
management

7 0 0 9 0 1 2 4 3 2

Noise/Concerts/
Fireworks/Event

0 1 7 3 1 0 1 3 0 17

Anti-Social 
Behaviour/Policing

11 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Customer/
Audience 
Complaints

0 0 0 2 1 0 0 1 0 0

Satisfaction/
Compliments

0 1 0 1 0 0 0 1 8 6

Other (MP 
Enquiry)

1 0 0 0 0 3 2 1 1 1

TOTALS 62 7 9 17 11 8 18 15 29 43
 

12



Eastleigh Borough Council

Parking/Temporary Coning Plans

Residents across West End including; Chapel Road, Telegraph Road, Littlewood 
Road, Hope Road, Patricia Close, Quob Farm, Little Quob Lane, Grosvenor Gardens 
and Trent Way reported that they were unable to enter/exit driveways as parked cars 
were obstructing them. Traffic cones were distributed throughout these areas to 
minimise disruption, however some cones were moved to enable vehicles to be 
parked and some were even thrown into private gardens at Hope Road and into 
Telegraph Woods. Also cones were discarded along Princess Close, Kenilworth 
Gardens, St James Road and Western Road, and when residents approached some 
of the drivers; they were subjected to verbal abuse. Many residents have questioned 
why some of the roads were only coned along one side, particularly along St James 
Road, Hope Road, Chapel Road and Moorgreen Road. There were also requests 
that Grosvenor Gardens, Little Quob Lane and Trent Way should be coned in the 
future. 

Cars were parked on double yellow lines at Chapel Road and Hope Road and also 
on the pavement at Brookside Way, Princess Close, Grosvenor Gardens, Trent Way, 
Hope Road, Quob Lane, West End Road, St. James Road, Chapel Road and 
Brookside Way. Inconsiderate parking was also reported from Tyne Way, Monarch 
Way, Brookside Way, Littlewood Gardens, Telegraph Road including the entrance to 
the woods and a piece of land on Long Drive was used to park around 25 vehicles, 
which made it dangerous pulling on and off a near blind bend. 

Cars were parked along Botley Road from the motorway bridge to Smyths Toys at 
Tollbar Way blocking the cycle path.

Concerns have been raised with regards to future parking for the cricket, once the 
fields which are used for overspill parking are developed.

Bus Shuttles and Traffic Management

Several residents missed doctor’s appointments, due to the heavy traffic congestion. 
Members of staff from West End surgery and also Moorgreen Hospital spent a 
considerable amount of time in their own car parks to inform drivers that they were 
for patients only. As a result of this patients were late for appointments, due to the 
build-up of traffic.

Residents have queried whether the park and ride buses were supposed to drive 
directly through West End, as this again lead to congestion. 

          Queries were raised regarding the actual time that spectators left the Ageas Bowl as 
it clashed with rush hour, causing heavy congestion particularly along Chalk Hill, 
Botley Road and Moorhill Road, again impacting on residents. 

Concerns were also raised about emergency vehicles being able to get through 
congested roads throughout the area, particularly along Quob Lane and Hope Road.

Numerous taxis waiting for passengers were seen using the car parking spaces at 
Noyce Court, which caused disruption.

13



Eastleigh Borough Council

Noise

No complaints regarding this aspect have been received directly by Borough Council 
officers.

Concerts/Fireworks

No complaints regarding this aspect have been received directly by Borough Council 
officers.

Anti-Social Behaviour/Policing

The local police have not notified the Council of any complaints, however a number 
of issues were raised with West End Parish, Eastleigh Borough Council and the 
Ageas Bowl, including residents being subjected to verbal abuse when asking other 
drivers not to block their driveways and roads; large amounts of litter being left 
behind after vehicles departed; there was a report of cricket supporters urinating 
against a resident’s garden wall; graffiti on salt bins and a fence at Western Road. A 
resident at Princess Close was involved in a physical assault after a 
misunderstanding. It was also reported that some elderly residents had cricket 
supporters knocking on their doors offering them £25 in order to park on their 
driveways.

Customer Experience Scores

Experiences within the stadium were rated highly, as the data below (which has been 
independently collated by Two Circles appointed by England Cricket Board) from 
match day experience scores show:

Named the country’s most family friendly cricket venue.

Vitality Blast: 8.4 (out of 10) – the highest experience rating in the last five years.

The Ageas Bowl rates 1st in cricket from five out of the 12 factors assessed.

International: 8.7 (out of 10) – maintained experience score from 2018 (averaged 
across all internationals) and exceeds national average of 8.4.

However issues outside of the stadium are causing concern and  residents have 
been struggling with parking issues for a while. Due to the level of complaints this 
year, the Council is working with The Ageas Bowl to look at proposals to address this 
situation. Comments made by residents and councillors at the Ageas Bowl Liaison 
Panel meeting on 14 November 2019 will inform these proposals. 

Further consultation with residents and key stakeholders will be undertaken.

14



Eastleigh Borough Council

Community Uses

Report from the Ageas Bowl:

The Ageas Bowl delivers community projects through its official charity the 
Hampshire Cricket Foundation. The Hampshire Cricket Foundation works with 
partners to support people in the local community and across Hampshire to make 
healthy life choices. 

Community Sports Clubs 

The Ageas Bowl site continues to provide facilities for more than 1,000 local people 
a week to be active. Delivery of these opportunities is primarily through three onsite 
community sports clubs; Poseidon Amateur Boxing Club,  Choi Kwang Do and 
Hedge End Running Club. 

Inspiring Young People to Play Cricket
 

Over the past three years the number of young people playing cricket in state 
Primary Schools has doubled. In partnership with Chance to Shine the Ageas Bowl 
now provide free cricket coaching in 160 local Primary Schools actively engaging 
over 4,500 children in the sport. Alongside this schools have been supported with 
the launch of All Stars, an introductory coaching programme for 5-8 year olds, 
providing regular activity for more than 2,000 participants in local community cricket 
club throughout the summer. 

Supporting People living with Dementia
 

Cricket Memory Days, a dementia support programme, celebrated welcoming more 
than one hundred visitors in 2019 at six events over the summer. These events, 
delivered in partnership with the Hampshire Cricket Members' Committee and 
Dementia Friendly Hampshire offer people living with dementia and their families 
the opportunity to enjoy a day at the cricket in a safe environment.  

Charitable Donations
 

The Ageas have provided raffle prizes to support local charities, schools and 
community groups in their fundraising efforts. In 2019, they supported 250 events 
taking the total number of events supported in the past three years to over 800. 

New Campaign
 
The charity will shortly be launching a new health and wellbeing campaign to 
support lifestyle change, health screening, rehabilitation and treatment with a hub 
at the Ageas Bowl. A central pillar of this campaign will be placing defibrillators in 
communities across the county positioned at local cricket clubs.

15



Eastleigh Borough Council

Financial Implications

There are no financial implications identified in this report.

Risk Assessment

There are no identifiable risks arising directly from this report. 

Equality and Diversity Implications

The Equality Act is not relevant to the decision in this report as the report does not 
recommend any actions in response to the review.  The Council will have due 
regard to the aims of the Equality Act (i.e. eliminating discrimination, advancing 
equality of opportunity, and fostering good relations between different people) in 
any decisions relating to community benefits and parking proposals. .

Climate Change and Environmental Implications

This report does not have any direct climate change and environmental 
implications. However the Council encourages the Ageas Bowl management team  
to change residents’ and visitors’ behaviour through effective  park and ride 
facilities, along with public transport provision and green routes to reduce 
congestion and air pollution.  

Conclusion

This report provides a review of the 2019 season in terms of issues that affect
local residents largely around the on-going parking problems from cricket matches 
and special events such as Fireworks night. The main community uses are also 
highlighted for councillors’ information.

SIOBHAN STRAND 
ASSISTANT LOCAL AREA MANAGER

Date: 06 January 2020
Contact Officer: Siobhan Strand
Tel No: 02380 688428
e-mail: siobhan.strand@eastleigh.gov.uk
Appendices Attached: None

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.

None.

16



HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 

Monday, 27 January 2020 

COMMUNITY GRANTS 2019/2020

Report of the Assistant Local Area Manager on behalf of the Hedge 
End, West End and Botley Community Grants Panel

Recommendations

It is recommended that the Committee approve the grants as set-out in Appendix 1 
to the report.

Summary

The Grants Panel recommends that grants be allocated to local organisations operating in 
the Hedge End, West End and Botley local area for 2019/20.

Statutory Powers

Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 i.e. the Local Authority's general power of competence, 
including power to act for the benefit of its area or persons resident or present in its area.

Strategic Implications 

1. The recommendations in this report support the Council’s approach to localism 
(Local First) by allocating devolved resources to meet local needs. The 
recommendations align with Corporate Plan objectives of Tackling Deprivation, 
Enabling Healthier Lifestyles and Wellbeing, Supporting an Excellent 
Environment, Improving Town and Local Centres, Increasing Provision and 
Ensuring a more diverse mix of Housing, and Enabling the Right Skills and 
Employment mix.

Introduction

2. Councillors will recall that this Committee has devolved responsibility for 
provision of revenue grants to local organisations. This year 21 different grant 
applications were received. The total requested was £6,971.22.

17

Agenda Item 8



Eastleigh Borough Council

3. This Committee’s Grants Panel comprising Councillors Garton, Jurd, Gomer 
and Trace reviewed the applications.

The Panel’s decisions

4. The Grants Panel gave careful consideration to all of the applications to 
ensure a broad distribution of funding was spread throughout the three local 
parished areas.

5. The Panel also considered the objectives of the organisations, the numbers 
attending; whether they were from the Hedge End, West End and Botley 
(HEWEB) area; the total costs of the project and whether funding was or could 
be sought from elsewhere. Additionally the applications were assessed 
against the following criteria including; business plans, details on how the 
grant application meets Eastleigh Borough Council’s priorities (Green 
Borough, Healthy Communities and Prosperous Place) and confirmation that 
the applications were not for day to day running costs.

6. A substantial number of applications were made by Wildern School (D.@rt 
Centre/Leisure Centre) and it was agreed that the activities provided on the 
campus catered for residents within all three parished areas.

7. It is therefore recommended that grants be approved as contained in 
Appendix 1 to this report.

Financial Implications

8. There are no ongoing revenue implications associated with this report as the 
Committee’s Community Grant  budget of £6,980 is sufficient to fund the 
Panel’s recommendations.

Risk Assessment

The recommendations made by the Grants Panel do not hold significant   
risks. All grant applications are subject to the completion of a detailed 
application and supporting documents including submission of financial 
details.

Equality and Diversity Implications

The report complies with our policy to ensure that the voluntary and 
community sectors are treated fairly and equitably. The Council has had due 
regard to the aims of the Equality Act.  The recommendations in this report 
promote equality of opportunity, in particular for children and young people, 
children with disabilities, disabled people (including mental health) and older 
people. Also to note, as part of the application process, applicants submitted 
an Equal Opportunities statement.

18



Eastleigh Borough Council

Climate Change and Environmental Implications

The community grants encourage and aim to change residents’ behaviour by 
supporting projects which incorporate green initiatives such as funding to 
develop a reflection garden for school children to help them come together to 
relax and engage with nature and to educate them on the importance of 
looking after the environment.  

Conclusion

The recommendations made in this report complement the Council’s 
corporate priorities as well as this Committee’s local priorities. Subject to the 
approval of this Committee, a grants presentation will take place before the 
local area committee meeting on 2 March 2020 to recognise and celebrate the 
breadth of community work being undertaken in the local area.

SIOBHAN STRAND ASSISTANT LOCAL AREA MANAGER

Date: 03 January 2020
Contact Officer: Siobhan Strand 
Tel No: 02380 688428
e-mail: siobhan.strand@eastleigh.gov.uk
Appendices Attached: 1

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.

21 grants applications were received and are held on file for further inspection. 
Information is available from Siobhan Strand, Assistant Local Area Manager.

19



This page is intentionally left blank



Organisation Project Name

One off project (not previously funded by EBC), 

equipment or individual events? 

Meets EBC priorities (green borough, healthy communities, 

prosperous place)?

How many 

HEWEB residents 

will this benefit?

Amount 

Requested Amount awarded

Music Fun Factory

£30 per set of music 3 sets looked at each term, 3 

groups, plus arranging pieces and printing pieces for 

Ukulele groups  

Music brings people together. You may be an old or young 

beginner but the learning process is just the same. Adults get the 

feeling of being helpful to the youngsters and vice versa. The 

boundaries of “young and old” are dissolved as people learn a new 

hobby together. Not only that it is becoming a place where people 

can relax and be sociable. We have people recovering from things 

life has thrown at them. 28 £200.00 £200.00

Botley C of E Primary School

Reflection garden and surrounding 

grounds

We are aiming to develop a ‘reflection garden’ for our 

children as part of being a Church of England School 

and would like funds to support us in doing this. The 

area we are aiming to use needs redevelopment in 

terms of some landscaping, seating for the children 

and some sensory planting. This grant would 

therefore be so useful in helping us to achieve a 

relaxing place for children to use across the day. 

We provide pupils of our school with a high quality education 

which is exciting and inclusive for all, whatever the children’s 

needs. We have children at our school from Botley, Boorley Green, 

Hedge End and West End so therefore improve the quality of life 

for those children. Our ‘Heart Values’ include teaching the children 

about stewardship of looking after our world, starting with the 

community in which they live Through our curriculum and sports 

provision, we encourage and promote healthy living. 368 £500.00 £500.00

Wildern Opportunity Group Wildern Opportunity Group

Equipment: Sensory Den, rope lights, rainbow sound 

blocks, sensory den kit

The Wildern Opportunity Group has been running for 30 years 

supporting local children with disabilities and their families. The 

opportunity group provides 1:1 support for children with special 

needs in a safe, sensory and nurturing environment. The purpose 

of the group is to give children with disabilities the opportunity to 

play, learn and explore, working with families to support children 

with early interventions ensuring that every child matters and all 

children can meet their individual potential. Providing local 

families with a support service that works with health 

professionals and services to minimize the potential stress and 

anxiety families can feel when parenting a child with special needs. 

This can support families and careers health and wellbeing. 29 £197.22 £197.22

West End Local History Society West End Local History Society Equipment: Tall lockable cabinet to store archive

The museum displays local interest and family history, plus a 

research area. It's open on a Sat 10am - 4pm and is run by 

volunteers. Social evenings are also run. 

? 75 

memberships £200.00 £200.00

21



Wellstead Primary School Year R outdoor area

We would use the funding to constantly replenish our 

consumables…

Literacy Shed – within this outdoor shed, the children 

can access writing materials so they can be creative in 

their learning. They can access resources linked to our 

Kinetic Letters handwriting programme so they can 

practise their letter formation. 

Art Shed – within this shed, the children can access a 

variety of art materials so they can create models and 

be creative.

PE shed – within this shed, the children will be able to 

access a variety of PE equipment they can use to 

improve their gross motor skills and their skills in 

specific sports e.g. dribbling skills, throwing and 

catching skills

This money would enable us to make further improvements to our 

Year R outdoor area. 

As a school, we have invested some considerable money improving 

the Year R area. For example, we added a stage area to enhance 

the children’s speaking and listening skills (this was something that 

we knew needed considerable work following their baseline 

assessments). We also installed some monkey bars – this would 

focus on increasing the children’s gross motor skills and ultimately 

strengthen their shoulder girdle which is a key focus in using our 

Kinetic Letters handwriting programme. 

In additional to this, we added in a number of sheds to our 

outdoor area. The sheds are kitted out with a variety of resources 

so the children can access activities that are replicated both 

indoors and outdoors. This in turn supports our focus on the 

children’s access to the outside and them being able to enjoy the 

fresh air (no matter what the weather) which ultimately is a boost 

for their mental health and wellbeing.

Replicating activities both indoors and outdoors obviously comes 

at a cost. These resources are often consumables that need to be 

replenished regularly so that the children are provided with a 

choice of items that they can self-select from which is great for 

increasing their independence. ? 420 children 

attend the school £500.00 £300.00

QE2 Evening Club

Blue Funnel Solent trip with food and 

disco

We will take the group on a Blue Funnel Solent Trip 

with food and a disco. They have done this before and 

loved it and keep asking when we can do it again. The 

trip costs more than £400 but they pay a small price 

for a ticket which contributes to the total cost. 

We provide friendship and support for vulnerable members of the 

community and this greatly improves their quality of life. We offer 

sports activities which helps their health and wellbeing. We take 

them on trips to local amenities (The Point/The Berry/Itchen Valley 

Country Park/Places Leisure/Vue Cinema) and local amateur 

dramatic shows. Getting these people out and about is  good for 

them and helps the community become a more inclusive place. 10 £400.00 £400.00

22



Wellstead, Botley and St. James Primary 

School Parenting group

Resources including toys as it is a play-based course. 

The parents will need to create a play toolkit which 

means that there will need to be sufficient toys for 

each parent. £50 per toolkit

Refreshments – the format will be set up like a coffee 

morning to allow the parents to feel at ease. Approx 

£10 per week

Resources for the parents to take away. Approx £5 per 

week

The anticipation is that this funding would allow the 

programme to run 4 times with individuals and once 

as a group course.

This money would be used to help fund a parenting group with the 

ethos of using play to improve connections and relationships 

between parents and children.

In my role, it has become evident that there is a demand from 

parents needing support with challenging behaviours they face at 

home. 

The idea behind this group is that parents will be able to come 

together, to share their own worries and experiences and to work 

together to come up with solutions and suggestions for each other 

to try. They will then be able to share their successes and learn 

from each other’s experiences to ultimately empower them to 

make positive changes to their home lives.

We will work with parents around the impact these negative 

behaviours have on not only the mental health and wellbeing of 

the children but also the adults’.

Initially, this course will take place on a 1:1 basis for 6-8 weeks. It 

will then progress to a group format.

Unlimited! £500.00 £500.00

Hedge End Retirement Club Hedge End Retirement Club New year outing, including lunch

Socialise, play bingo, play whilst, raffles and celebrate special 

occasions within the club. Provide a safe, friendly environment for 

elderly people in local area. 35 £500.00 £250.00

Total £3,547.22 £2,547.22

23



Organisation Project Name

One off project (not previously funded by EBC), equipment or 

individual events? 

Meets EBC priorities (green borough, healthy communities, 

prosperous place)?

How many HEWEB 

residents will this benefit? Amount Requested Amount Awarded

The D.@rt Centre Community Hub Equipment - purchase of new chairs 

Community Hub promoting physical and mental health through 

educational experiences such as; workshops, exercise classes, NHS 

clinics, teen talk sessions, youth service and young carers. 150 £500.00 £500.00

The D.@rt Centre The D.@rt Centre

Tutor costs for elders who attend aqua aerobics at Wildern Centre to 

start crafting sessions at The D@rt

The classes will increase knowledge thereby improving self-esteem 

and by taking part in a new activity will help to reduce social isolation. 

Being part of a group fosters a sense of community and an 

improvement in mental health it may lead to attendance at other 

courses. 15 £100.00 £100.00

The D.@rt Centre The D.@rt Centre

Equipment - purchase of replacement cake tins and loaf tins We offer 

the following courses that attract members of the community from 4-

90 such as Men’s Cookery, Children’s Cookery Club, Advanced 

Children’s Cookery/family cookery, Theone Cookery Sessions, Chef 

Dan’s masterclasses, Teen Tuesdays.

The cookery sessions fit in with Eastleigh Borough Council’s priorities 

of enabling healthier lifestyles/wellbeing.

The cookery teaches life skills and improves confidence which is 

important for mental health. There is a positive effect on mental 

health due to socialisation and being part of a group as well as 

improved self-esteem and reduced isolation, the health benefits of 

cooking food from scratch which fosters healthy eating are widely 

reported.
1300 £420.00 £420.00

The D.@rt Centre

Hedge End Arts 

Appreciation/Silver 

Screenings Programme

Hedge End Arts Appreciation: Materials and refreshments for the year. 

Transport for the Christmas lunch - £300.

Silver Screenings: Film rights for 1 film - £100

All of our elders projects help reduce social isolation and improve 

mental health whilst learning new skills and reinforcing a sense of 

community. The young people learn so much from sharing 

experiences and they develop confidence and learn respect and 

patience. This fits with the Council’s priorities of healthier lifestyles.
20-30 £400.00 £400.00

The D.@rt Centre The D.@rt Centre

We are seeking funding for a Young Carers trip to Go Ape in Itchen 

Valley Country Park. The funding will pay for 20 Wildern Young Carers 

to have a day of fun at the Treetop Challenge in this fantastic local 

facility.

The day fits in with Eastleigh’s priority of improving physical and 

mental health. The young carers get the chance to learn new skills, 

develop their support network and team building skills, whilst “having 

fun”. The day out will improve mental health, a sense of community 

and improve fitness. 20 £500.00 £500.00

The D.@rt Centre Wildern Leisure Centre

We are seeking funding towards the cost of one to one swimming 

lessons for 10 children with additional needs. We have a group of 

children who cannot access main stream lessons due to their complex 

needs eg. autism, it is hoped that after 5 individual sessions they will 

gain confidence to integrate with main stream lessons.

The grant funding would pay for each child to have 5 lessons, their 

parents would be expected to pay £6.25 per lesson and the grant 

would pay for the shortfall of £11.75 per lesson.

The project improves the quality of life for those taking part as 

learning to swim is an essential life skill and improves both physical 

and mental health. It also improves confidence and self- esteem, 

valuable skills for any young person but particularly for those with 

additional needs. It also provides much-needed support for parents. 10 £500.00 £500.00

The D.@rt Centre Wildern Leisure Centre

We are looking to start new Strength and balance classes/armchair 

aerobics for the elderly. We would anticipate classes of 8 participants 

which we would make a charge of £2 and funding to cover the 

outstanding £2, this will ensure the sessions are sustainable.

In order to deliver the course the tutor needs to attend a 3 day 

OTAGO training course at a cost of £504.

The strength and balance course will enable participants to increase 

physical core strength and help with balance which reduces as you get 

older. 

We have surveyed members of our elders groups and we already have 

enough interest for the course to go ahead. The course will reduce 

social isolation, increase physical and mental health and reduce the 

need for possible future NHS involvement if the risk of falls is reduced. 

8 £500.00 £500.00

24



The D.@rt Centre Wildern Leisure Centre

We are seeking funding for some new equipment for the Leisure 

Centre Holiday Activities including rugby tag belts, uni hoc, dodgeball 

and frisbees.

The holiday activities are activity based sessions that run during the 

school holidays, providing families with affordable and safe child care. 

Wraparound care extending the day until 5pm is available. 

The activities vary and include swimming and fun games. Some 

children attend every day during the 6 week summer holiday so it is 

important that a variety of games are offered to reduce boredom and 

increase skills.

We are seeking funding for some new equipment for the Leisure 

Centre Holiday Activities including rugby tag belts, uni hoc, dodgeball 

and frisbees.

The holiday activities are activity based sessions that run during the 

school holidays, providing families with affordable and safe child care. 

Wraparound care extending the day until 5pm is available. 

The sessions are active and promote a healthy lifestyle, they also give 

young people a taste of sports they may never have experienced 

before. The sessions promote team work and improve self-esteem as 

well as developing a sense of community and a chance to make 

friends. The parents have peace of mind knowing their child is well 

looked after. 30 £304.00 £304.00

Total £3,424.00 £3,224.00

25



T
his page is intentionally left blank



HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 

Monday, 27 January 2020 

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

Report of the Local Area Manager 

Recommendations

It is recommended that this Committee approves 

(1) expenditure of £4,500 from the Committee’s reserves for 15 litter bins;

(2) the allocation of the developer’s contribution of £6,991.20 for the kitchen 
project at the Old School House, Hedge End;

(3) expenditure of up to £4,350 from the Committee’s revenue budget for 9 flower 
towers;

(4) the allocation of developers’ contributions of £100,000 plus interest for the two 
play areas at Boorley Park;

(5) the stated fees and charges for Itchen Valley Country Park effective from 1 April 
2020; and

(6) the increase of 30p to the parking tariffs for Hedge End Train Station car park 
and Stroudley Way effective from 1 April 2020 until 1 February 2022

Summary

This report identifies funding for provision to meet local need and to enhance the local 
area.
Fees and Charges for Council services are reviewed on a regular basis. In accordance 
with the budget strategy approved by the Cabinet in October 2019, fees and charges 
levied by the Council are reviewed with the intention of increasing the yield by 3%

Statutory Powers

Section 151 of the, Local Government Act 1972

Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 i.e. the Local Authority’s general power of 
competence, including power to act for the benefit of its area or persons resident or 
present in its area

27

Agenda Item 9



Eastleigh Borough Council

Strategic Implications 

1. The proposals will help to achieve some of the key objectives in the 
Corporate Plan. For example, the additional litter bins along with the provision 
of flower towers will help to create an excellent environment for all and will 
reinvigorate town and local centres. Assistance with the kitchen project at the 
Old School House will positively affect the programme of activities enabling 
healthier lifestyles and well - being and potentially tackling deprivation. The 
projects are in line with Local First which focuses on local need and local 
priorities. The proposed fees and charges are in line with the corporate policy. 

Litter Bins

2. The Council’s Streetscene Operations Manager has offered to buy 15 dual 
component litter bins at a reduced cost of £4,500 giving a saving of £525. The 
price includes installation. The bins would be stored at the Council’s Depot 
and would be readily available providing a more efficient service for residents.

3. It is therefore recommended that expenditure of £4,500 is allocated from the 
Committee’s reserves for 15 litter bins.

The Old School House (formerly known as HEYCA - Hedge 
End Youth and Community Association)

4. Hedge End Town Council owns the Old School House and has been carrying 
out works to the fabric of the building during the past few years. This 
Committee has allocated several developers’ contributions towards these 
works. The next phase of work will include the kitchen area and the Town 
Clerk has asked whether there is any further funding available from 
developers’ contributions.

5. There is currently a small sum available from the following developer’s 
contribution and it is recommended that this is granted to the Town Council as 
a contribution towards these works.

DC F/15/76447 Kingsgate(s/be 
Knightsgate), Home Farm, St. 
John’s Road, Hedge End. Receipt 
Date 25/03/2019

£6,991.20

Flower Towers

6. This Committee has previously funded nine flower towers which have been 
located in the shopping centres within Hedge End, West End and Botley.

7. The flower towers have always been received positively and it is 
recommended that expenditure of up to £4,350 is authorised to continue this 
provision during the Summer.

28



Eastleigh Borough Council

Boorley Park Play Areas

8. The open space for the first play area at Boorley Park has now been laid out. 
This is the land next to the Sports Pavilion. The Section 106 agreement now 
requires the developers to forward a payment of £50,000 with indexation to 
the Borough Council for the provision of this play area. 

9. A further play area is planned within the site at Chancellors Park and the 
same amount, i.e., £50,000 with indexation is required once this open space 
is laid out. This will happen in a future development phase but the formal 
allocation of both payments is recommended in order to assist with delivery.

DC   O/12/71514  Bloor Homes, 
Bovis Homes, Linden Homes re 
Land @ Boorley Green, Winchester 
Rd, Botley

£100,000 plus indexation

Fees and Charges at Itchen Valley Country Park

10. The Council agrees an annual strategy regarding fees and charges. In 
2020/21 the required yield is 3%.

11. This Committee has discretion to set the fees and charges at Itchen Valley 
(and for the car park at Hedge End Train Station and at Stroudley Way).

12.. The Country Parks Visitor Services Manager and the Local Operations and 
Parking Manager have discussed these charges with the Local Area Manager 
and the following proposals are shown below for councillors’ consideration:

ITCHEN VALLEY COUNTRY PARK

Barbeque Charges 1 Jan 19

£

1 April 20

£

Change

%

Up to 60 people Monday – Thursday 47.50 48.00 1.1

Up to 60 people Friday – Sunday 63.00 64.00 1.6

Over 60 people Monday – Thursday 76.00 77.00 1.3

Over 60 people Friday – Sunday 89.50 90.00 0.6

29



Eastleigh Borough Council

School Parties 1 Jan 19

£

1 April 20

£

Change

%

Classroom hire 57.00 58.00 1.75

Visit / Activity – Led by EBC Staff – per child 5.50 5.60 1.8

General Guided Walks (Minimum Charge) 1 Jan 19

£

1 April 20

£

Change

%

Adults 3.95 4.00 1.3

Concessions 2.70 3.00 1.1

Kingfisher Room  

Room hire per hour (minimum charge 2 hours) 25.00 26.00 4.0

Room hire for parties (up to 5 hours) 56.00 58.00 3.6

Hire of High Hill Field (Minimum Charge) 1 Jan 19

£

1 April 20

£

Change

%

Charitable organisations

- Up to 1000 people 362.00 372.00 2.8

- Over  1000 people 662.00 680.00 2.7

Non – Charitable Organisations

- Up to 1000 people 662.00 680.00 2.7

- Over  1000 people 1630.00 1630.00 0

Car Parking 1 Jan 19 

£

1 April 20

£

Change 

%

Up to One Hour 1.40 1.50 7.14

Up to Two Hours 2.60 2.80 7.7

Up to Three Hours 3.90 4.00 2.6

Four hours + 4.50 4.60 2.2

30



Eastleigh Borough Council

Other Parking Charges 1 Jan 19

£

1 April 20

£

Change 

%

Coaches 21.00 22.00 4.8

Orange/Blue Badges Free Free N/A

Motorcycles Free Free N/A

Annual Permits 47.00 49.00 4.3

6 Monthly Permits 26.00 27.00 3.8

Quarterly Permits 16.00 17.00 6.3

13. Councillors will recall that the charges for bridleways were reduced at last 
year’s meeting due to the new non - exclusivity policy.

14. Currently consideration is being given to an Automatic Number Plate 
Recognition system so the parking charges categories have remained the 
same for the forthcoming year.

Fees and Charges – Hedge End Train Station car park and 
Stroudley Way 

15. The current charge for Hedge End Train Station car park and Stroudley Way 
is £3.70, Monday to Friday, 8am – 4pm with no charges over the weekend or 
on bank holidays.

16. The all - day parking charge at Southampton Airport Parkway train station car 
park is currently £17.30 and £8.50 off peak

17. It is therefore recommended that the charges are increased to £4.00 from 
April 1 2020 but that this is frozen until 1 February 2022. 

Financial Implications

18. All of the recommendations for funding can be afforded from this Committee’s 
revenue and capital budgets. The fees and charges must be implemented in 
order to achieve the strategic target of a 3% yield.

Risk Assessment

19. There is a risk that the remaining developers’ contributions for the play area at 
Chancellors Park will not be received. However this is considered to be 
unlikely and the project could be delayed in this instance.

31



Eastleigh Borough Council

20. If the Committee does not comply with the corporate fees and charges policy 
and the income target is not achieved then it will be responsible for the 
shortfall. 

Equality and Diversity Implications

21. The Equality Act is relevant to some of the decisions in this report because   

 We have due regard to Equality issues as free car parking has been 
retained for those with disabilities. Play areas will continue to be 
designed to conform to accessibility standards.

Climate Change and Environmental Implications

22. There are very few flower towers grown in the UK, so the proposed towers are 
imported from the Netherlands. They contribute to climate change through 
their production, transport, eventual disposal and weekly watering throughout 
the summer.  

23. Affordable parking charges enable more people to access sustainable 
transport and also allow predominantly families to enjoy the facilities at Itchen 
Valley Park which aims to educate its visitors about the environment and 
energy consumption. 

Conclusion

24. The recommended projects will provide future benefit to the local community. 
The Committee is requested to approve the funding streams and also to 
approve the fees and charges at Itchen Valley Country Park, Hedge End Train 
Station and Stroudley Way.

JULIA BIRT
LOCAL AREA MANAGER

Date: 19 December 2019
Contact Officer: Julia Birt 
Tel No: 02380 688437
e-mail: julia.birt@eastleigh.gov.uk
Appendices Attached: None

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. None

32



Hedge End, West End and Botley Local Area Committee 

Monday, 27 January 2020 

HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA ACTION 
PLAN 2020/21

Report of the Local Area Manager

Recommendations

It is recommended that the Committee:  

(1) note the progress on identified projects and priorities during 2019; and

(2) approve the Hedge End, West End and Botley (HEWEB) Local Area Action Plan 
2020/21 shown in Appendix Two for adoption and publication.

Summary

This report presents updates and priorities for the coming year for the Local Area 
Committee.  

Statutory Powers

Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 i.e. the Local Authority's general power of competence, 
including power to act for the benefit of its area or persons resident or present in its area.

Strategic Implications

1. This report seeks to address all of the key objectives in the Corporate Plan and 
is in line with the Local First project which focuses on local need and local 
priorities.

Introduction

2. The Council has agreed a set of Borough-wide objectives to improve quality of 
life for all. These are set out in the Corporate Plan 2015-25. The Council also 
seeks to enable decisions to be made at the most appropriate local level, most 
notably through the five Local Area Committees but also through our town and 
parish councils and other more local partnerships.

3. The Local Area Committee approves a Community Investment Programme 
(CIP) annually, which lists all of the local projects and initiatives that the Local 

33

Agenda Item 10



Eastleigh Borough Council

Area Committee wishes to prioritise. The list is devised in conjunction with the 
Town Council and the Parish Councils. It is used to negotiate Section 106 
contributions from developers which usually form the majority of the funds 
required. These funds often need to be pooled from several developments over 
several years in order to achieve sufficient funding for the project.

4. The Local Area Action Plan (LAAP) is used to determine budgets and staff 
resources as part of the Council’s annual business planning cycle. It also 
highlights the key local partnerships within the local area.

Progress in 2019

5. All five Local Area Committees have reviewed progress on existing projects and 
priorities. An update for HEWEB is contained in Appendix One. 

6. The proposed HEWEB Local Area Action Plan for 2020/21 has been updated 
based on this progress.

7. Local councillors have been consulted on the updated Plan and it is now 
recommended that the HEWEB Local Area Action Plan 2020/21 is approved for 
adoption and publication as shown in Appendix Two.  

Financial Implications

8. There are no direct financial implications arising from the recommendations.

Risk Assessment

9. The allocation of resources and delivery of the projects would be adversely 
affected without the Plan.

Equality and Diversity Implications

10. The Equality Act is relevant to the decision in this report. All of the projects 
with the exception of climate change initiatives have been previously 
assessed and approved by this Committee. For example, access for all has 
been ensured through the design of community facilities at Boorley Park and 
community use agreements will secure a broad programme of activities for all 
sections of society. The climate change initiatives will be in line with the 
Council’s Climate Change Action Plan which is currently at an outline stage.

Climate Change and Environmental Implications

11. Apart from supporting climate change initiatives, the Plan also aims to change 
residents’ behaviour through projects such as the green routes public art and 
the Itchen Valley master plan will incorporate green initiatives such as 
upgrading pathways, tree and biodiversity enhancements. The major 
developments all have BREEAM requirements and align to internal and 
statutory external regulations to protect and enhance the environment.

34



Eastleigh Borough Council

Conclusion

12. The report presents the draft HEWEB Local Area Action Plan 2020/21 as 
shown in Appendix Two for approval.

JULIA BIRT
LOCAL AREA MANAGER

Date: 13 December 2019
Contact Officer: Julia Birt
Tel No: 02380 688437
e-mail: julia.birt@eastleigh.gov.uk
Appendices Attached: Two 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.

Background Papers – 
Eastleigh Borough Council Corporate Plan 2015-25
HEWEB Local Area Action Plan for 2019/20

35



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix One - HEWEB Local Area Action Plan 2019/20 progress update

PROJECT/PRIORITY UPDATE
Major planning applications – maximising 
community benefit
Boorley Park Primary School open

The community centre, sports pavilion and 
adjacent play area, Multi Use Games Area, 
allotments and sports pitches will be open to 
the public in 2020

Boorley Gardens Land reserved for pedestrian bridge
Financial compensation agreed to enable re-
provision of football pitches in local area
Reserved matters for phase 2 approved; 
reserved matters for phase 3 out to 
consultation

Woodhouse Lane Section 106 agreed and site works for Deer 
Park School have commenced
Community Use Agreement under discussion
Scoping of outdoor provision including football 
pitches and an extension to the School’s sports 
hall under discussion

Winchester Street Discussions with HCC taking place re: Section 
106 and detailed plans for the site

St. John’s Phase 1 and Phase 2, Hedge End Developers’ contributions allocated by HEWEB 
LAC.
Project brief for play trail and public art to be 
completed in January 2020
Specialist contractors identified

Hatch Farm Project Manager appointed and site visits 
conducted with West End Parish Council
Working Group established and will meet in 
January 2020
Consultation to be arranged regarding possible 
skate park on Hatch Farm and also recreational 
uses within Barnsland

OTHER PROJECTS
Itchen Valley Country Park - masterplan Project Team and Board established

Reviewing business as usual issues and longer 
term aspirations 
Key areas to be agreed by February 2020

Wildern swimming pool roof/spectator seating - 
feasibility

Feasibility study completed
Now a live project as building works 
commenced in November with a project end 
date of Summer 2020

37



Appendix One - HEWEB Local Area Action Plan 2019/20 progress update

Former Budgens’ site, Hedge End Site to be demolished in January 2020
PUBLIC ART PROJECTS
Berry Theatre entrance gates Artist appointed; consultation completed; final 

designs being confirmed
Final installation will be after the swimming 
pool project is completed

Former Moorgreen hospital (The Pavilions) The Knot sculpture was completed in the 
Summer
Well received by the local community and a 
good example of partnership working

Welcome to West End signage After discussion with HCC, the signage is now 
forming part of the heritage trail and will be 
renamed
Artist appointed and final designs approved 
Installation expected in Summer 2020

Green routes, Hedge End Artist appointed. Consultation carried out 
Final design to be approved
 Installation expected in Summer 2020

38



Cllr Cynthia Garton - Local Area Chair

cynthia.garton@eastleigh.gov.uk

Hedge End,  
West End & Botley (HEWEB)

Responsibilities of the  
Local Area Committee

Responsibilities of the  
Local Area Manager 

Key Projects & Priorities

Council Services - Local Variations

 ▶ Champion the local area

 ▶ Decide local priorities

 ▶ Manage local budgets

 ▶ Determine local levels of council services such 
as Streetscene and traffic management

 ▶ Work with the local community

 ▶ Decide planning applications

 ▶ Act as a link between the Council and 
local people

 ▶ Support local councillors

 ▶ Manage the local revenue budget and the 
capital programme/major projects

 ▶ Work with the Council to improve local 
services and to ensure value for money

 ▶ Identify local needs and priorities

 ▶ Work closely with Town and Parish Councils, 
schools and community groups

 ▶ Major planning applications 
- maximise community benefit 
from current sites at Boorley 
Park, Boorley Gardens, 
Woodhouse Lane, Winchester 
Street, St. John’s Phase 1 and 
2, Hedge End and Hatch Farm

 ▶ Itchen Valley Country Park - 
produce master plan for Phase 
2 onwards

 ▶ Wildern swimming pool roof/
spectator seating

 ▶ Public art at the Berry Theatre 
entrance; West End heritage 
markers and green routes in 
Hedge End

 ▶ Former Budgens’ site, 
Hedge End

 ▶ Climate Change initiatives

 ▶ Country Parks, Land 
Management and Corporate 
Communications – Itchen 
Valley Country Park

 ▶ Direct Services and Corporate 
Communications - sponsored 
roundabouts Direct Services 

and Locality Team – car parks 
at Itchen Valley Country Park 
and Hedge End Train Station

 ▶ Support Services - Community 
and Youth Grants

Key Partnerships

 ▶ Hedge End Town Council

 ▶ West End Parish Council 

 ▶ Botley Parish Council

 ▶ Hampshire County Council

 ▶ Boorley Green Working 
Group including Community 
Development Officer

 ▶ Wildern Academy Trust

 ▶ HEWEB Community Schools 
Network

 ▶ Hampshire Cricket in the 
Community

 ▶ HEWEB Youth Partnership

 ▶ HEWEB Business Group

Hiltingbury
Chandler’s

Ford

Eastleigh

Bishopstoke

Horton
Heath

Fair
Oak

Bursledon

Netley

Hamble- 
le-Rice

West
End

Hedge
End

Botley

Julia Birt - Local Area Manager
julia.birt@eastleigh.gov.uk   023 8068 8437

Local Area Action Plan 
2020/21

Appendix 2

39



T
his page is intentionally left blank



HEWEB – Hedge End, West End and Botley Local Area Committee Monday 
27 January 2020.

Application Number: X/19/86760
Case Officer: Rosie Rivers
Received Date: Monday 28 October 2019
Site Address: UNIT 3, LANKESTER HOUSE, 1 FREEGROUNDS ROAD, 

HEDGE END, SOUTHAMPTON, SO30 0HG
Applicant: S Ramsey
Proposal: Variation of condition 3 of prior notification J/17/80081 to 

extend opening hours.

Recommendation: PERMIT

CONDITIONS AND REASONS

1 The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance with 
the following plans numbered: BLOC 01, FP 01.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

2 The development hereby permitted shall not be open to customers except 
between the hours of 10am - 5pm Monday to Wednesday, 10am – 10pm 
Thursday to Saturday and 10am - 4pm on Sundays or Bank Holidays. 

Reason: To protect the amenity of the occupiers of nearby properties.

3 No deliveries shall be received or dispatched from the site except between the 
hours of 10am - 5pm Monday to Saturday and 10am - 4pm Sundays or Bank 
Holidays. 

Reason: To protect the amenities of the occupiers of nearby properties.

4 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (Use 
Classes) Order 1987 the building shall only be used as a café or tea room and 
not for any other purpose falling within Class A3: Food and Drink of this order 
unless a specific grant of planning permission for such a use has first been 
obtained. 

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt. The Local Planning Authority is disposed 
to grant permission for the proposed use only as in so far as the site will be 
used as a café or tea room, and the Local Planning Authority wishes to retain 
control over the use of the site in order that any future proposals may be 
considered on their merits.
 

5 There shall be no sales of hot food to take away from the premises to which this 
permission relates unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 

41

Agenda Item 12



Reason: The Local Planning Authority consider that use of the property for hot 
food take away sales would, by virtue of the general levels of activity, noise and 
general disturbance associated with such use, harm the amenity of local 
residents and the character of the area.

Note to Applicant: In accordance with paragraph 38 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework (February 2019), Eastleigh Borough Council takes a positive 
approach to the handling of development proposals so as to achieve, whenever 
possible, a positive outcome and to ensure all proposals are dealt with in a 
timely manner.

Report:

This application has been referred to Committee because a member of the 
committee lives in close proximity to the application site.

Description of Application

1. The application is for the variation of condition 3 of prior notification application 
J/17/80081 to extend the opening hours of the business.  Condition 3 of 
application J/17/80081 states:

The development hereby permitted shall not be open to customers and no 
deliveries shall be received or dispatched from the site except between the 
hours of 10am-5pm Monday – Saturday and 10am-4pm Sunday. Reason: To 
protect the amenity of the occupiers of nearby properties.

2. The application originally applied to extend the opening hours to allow the 
business to stay open until 10pm Monday to Saturday, with no variation 
proposed to the Sunday opening hours, but this has now been amended and 
the application now seeks to vary the opening hours to 10pm on Thursday, 
Friday and Saturday only.

Site Characteristics

3. The application site forms a ground floor unit used as a tearoom – Kettle & 
Cake. The area forms part of the secondary shopping area of Hedge End. To 
the south are residential dwellings, to the east The Catholic Church of the 
Assumption and residential units, and to the north is the primary shopping area 
of Hedge End.

Relevant Planning History

4. The relevant planning history is as follows:

J/17/80081 – Prior approval for change of use for A1 (retail) to A3 (restaurants 
and cafes) – Prior approval not required subject to conditions 11/04/2017

42



Z/27911/011/00 - Change of use from retail (A1) to hot food take away (A3) – 
Withdrawn 19/11/2002

Z/27911/003/00 – Formation of vehicular access to car park – Refused 
20/02/1986

Z/27911/002/00 - Conversion to offices with external alterations and associated 
parking – Permit 23/10/1985

Z/27911/001/00 – Change of use to pet shop – Permit 04/02/1985

5. Representations Received

2 letters of comment on the following grounds:
 Parking and impact on highway safety
 Impact on residential amenity
 Future conversion to a hot food takeaway

6. Consultation Responses

Hedge End Town Council – objection on the basis of conflicting information in 
the supporting documents. The committee were concerned that it is not clear 
what the usage maybe and this may lead to increase in use/traffic and anti-
social behaviour in a residential area. Concerns business will not stay as a tea 
shop.

Environmental Health – No objection due to the nature of the use as a tea 
room/café.

7. Policy Context:  Designation Applicable to Site

 Within Built-up Area Boundary
 Shopping area – secondary zone
 Flood Zone 2 and 3

Legislative provisions 

8. Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and Section 38(6) of 
the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 require a local planning 
authority determining an application to do so in accordance with the 
Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

The Development Plan 

9. At the current time the Development Plan for the Borough comprises the Saved 
Policies within the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review (2001-2011) and the 
Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan (October 2013). The policies contained 
within the latter are not considered to be applicable to the particular 
development proposed as part of this application.

43



The Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review 2001-2011

10. The Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review 2001-2011 (the adopted Local Plan) 
was adopted in May 2006. In November 2008, the Council submitted a list of 
proposed Saved Policies to the Secretary of State with a request that they be 
saved until they could be replaced by a new Local Development Framework. 
The following policies were saved and are considered to be of relevance to the 
development proposals: 29.ES, 59.BE, 100.T and 104.T.

Emerging Local Plan Policies

Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029, July 2014

11. The Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 was submitted for examination in 
July 2014, but the Inspector concluded that insufficient housing was being 
provided for in the Plan and that it was unsound. While this plan has not been 
withdrawn and remains a material consideration, it can therefore be considered 
to have extremely limited weight in the determination of this application.

The Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2016-2036, October 2018

12. The Local Plan was submitted to the Secretary of State on 31st October 2018 
with examination hearings taking place in November 2019 and early 2020. 
Given the status of the submitted plan it is considered that moderate weight can 
be attributed to it, and it is a material planning consideration.

13. The relevant policies of both the 2011-2029 and 2016-2036 plans essentially 
echo the requirements of those of the adopted local plan as listed above and 
are not therefore considered to affect the recommendation put forward.

Supplementary Planning Documents

14. There are no Supplementary Planning Documents relevant to the determination 
of this application.

National Planning Policy 

15. At a national level, The National Planning Policy Framework 2019 (the ‘NPPF’ 
or the ‘Framework’) is a material consideration of significant weight in the 
determination of planning applications. The Planning Practice Guidance 
provides additional guidance in support of the Framework and should be 
afforded weight in the consideration of planning applications.

Assessment of Proposal

Principle

16. The site is located within the urban edge where the principle of development is 
considered to be acceptable subject to the design and impact of the proposal 

44



being in accordance with the relevant Local Plan policies and Supplementary 
Planning Documents. The change of use of the unit to a café has been 
established under application J/17/80081 and therefore this application will only 
consider the acceptability of extending the opening hours of the unit.

Planning history 

17. In 2017 a prior approval application, J/17/80081, was submitted to change the 
use of the site to from an A1 (retail) use to A3 (restaurants and café) use. The 
application concluded that full planning permission was not required, subject to 
compliance with conditions, and the use was changed to an A3 café and 
tearoom use. Condition 3 restricted the hours of opening and deliveries to 
10am to 5pm Monday to Saturday and 10am to 4pm on Sunday. In addition, 
conditions were attached to restrict the use to a café or tea room and for no 
other use within Class A3 and a further condition restricting the sale of hot food 
to takeaway.

Variation of condition 

18. This application originally applied to extend the opening hours to allow the 
business to stay open until 10pm Monday to Saturday, with no variation 
proposed to the Sunday opening hours.  Following concerns raised by officers 
the current application has been amended to change the variation of the 
opening hours to 10pm on Thursday, Friday and Saturday only.  No variation is 
now proposed to the opening hours on the other days of the week.

19. The supporting statement explains that since opening, the business has 
become successful, however, it needs to attract more income and one way to 
do this is to stay open longer to compete with other outlets which draw on 
custom in the area in the evening.

Parking and highway matters

20. The prior approval application considered that the A3 use would result in less 
trip generation than the previous A1 use that was on the site and therefore 
raised no objection to the proposal. 

21. It is noted that the existing use does not have any allocated parking for the site. 
Following the officer’s site visit it is noted that there is informal parking to the 
front of the site. It is considered that a number of users of the site could have 
linked trips to other business within Hedge End Town Centre, and it is also 
noted that there are existing car parks and bus stops in close proximity to the 
site. It is therefore considered that due to the site’s location within Hedge End 
Town Centre it is well served by public transport and existing parking with the 
town centre. It is considered that the extension of the opening hours would not 
impact on the existing parking situation such as to warrant a reason for refusal 
in this case.

Impact on residential amenity 

45



22. There are residential properties located opposite the site to the south west. 
There are also residential properties located along Freegrounds Road, which 
provides the vehicular access to the site.

23. It is noted that the extended hours could result in more activity in this area later 
in the evening than the existing uses on the site, however, due to the nature of 
the use as a café/tea room, the proposal is not considered to result in noise 
disturbance that would materially impact on the amenities of these 
neighbouring properties. The existing conditions on the original application 
controlling hours of delivery, use and sale of hot food takeaways would be re-
attached to maintain those controls.

24. Concerns have been raised by the neighbouring properties and the Town 
Council regarding potential changes to the unit that could result in noise 
disturbance and anti-social behaviour. It is noted from the site visit that the 
existing unit has approximately 7 to 8 tables for customers with limited spaces 
to extend the number of tables further and therefore the proposal is not 
considered to result in a more intensive use of the site. The use is also 
conditioned to be a tea room/café and therefore planning permission would be 
required to change the unit into restaurant use within this use class.  

25. Concerns have also been raised regarding the use of the site as a hot food 
takeaway. Separate planning permission would be required to change the use 
of the site to an A5 take away use. There is also a condition on the prior 
approval application restricting the sale of hot food takeaway from the site.

Conclusion

26. The proposed variation of condition to extend the opening hours of the existing 
café/tea room on Thursday to Saturday is considered to be acceptable. The 
proposal is not considered to result in a significantly detrimental impact on the 
amenities of the neighbouring properties or existing parking with the 
surrounding area. The proposal is therefore considered to comply with policies 
29.ES, 59.BE, 100.T and 104.T of the Local Plan.

46



47



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	7 Ageas Bowl Review 2019
	8 Community Grants 2019/2020
	Community Grants - Appendix 1

	9 Financial Management
	10 Hedge End, West End and Botley Local Area Action Plan 2020/21
	HEWEB Local Area Action Plan - 2020-21 Appendix 1
	HEWEB Local Area Action Plan 2020-21 - Appendix. 2

	12 Planning Application - Unit 3, Lankester House, 1 Freegrounds Road, Hedge End, Southampton, SO30 0HG - X/19/86760

